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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
DISTRICT OF MARYLAND
PIERRE GARÇON,
Individually and on behalf
of all those similarly situated.
Plaintiff,
v.

Civil Action No.

FANDUEL INC.
19 UNION SQUARE WEST, 9TH FL.
NEW YORK, NY 10003
Defendant.
COMPLAINT
Plaintiff Pierre Garçon, through his attorneys, brings this Class Action against
Defendant FanDuel Inc. (“FanDuel”) for himself and for all others similarly situated,
alleging as follows:
NATURE OF ACTION
1.

In the operation and sale of online daily fantasy football gaming products,

Defendant FanDuel knowingly and improperly exploits the popularity and
accomplishments of current Washington Redskins wide receiver Pierre Garçon, along
with all the other National Football League (“NFL”) players at offensive skilled
positions. In addition, through a comprehensive advertising campaign and in its daily
fantasy football contests, Defendant FanDuel routinely uses the names and likenesses of
these NFL players to promote FanDuel’s commercial enterprise, collecting huge revenues
from entry fees, without the authority of Mr. Garçon or the other NFL players. Plaintiff
and the proposed Class members have not given their consent to Defendant’s blatant
misappropriation of their publicity rights. Nevertheless, Defendant FanDuel continues to
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promote and to operate its daily fantasy football contests on the backs of NFL players,
whose popularity and performance make the Defendant’s commercial daily fantasy
football product possible.
PARTIES, JURISDICTION, AND VENUE
2.

Plaintiff Pierre Garçon is an individual residing in Ashburn, Virginia who

plays professional football in the NFL for the Washington Redskins and is one of the top
wide receivers in the league who regularly shows his talents at FedEx Field in Landover,
Maryland.
3.

He has worked tirelessly to achieve his success after having been drafted

205th in the 2008 NFL draft out of Mount Union College.
4.

That hard work has paid off on the field, so much so that in 2013, Plaintiff

Garçon was the NFL reception leader.
5.

This case is about FanDuel trying to profit on Plaintiff Garçon’s success,

and that of other NFL athletes, without compensating them.
6.

Defendant FanDuel Inc. is a Delaware corporation, based in New York

City, New York, that has created what is essentially its own series of interactive online
simulation games, trying to capitalize on the successes, the names, the images, and the
likenesses of Plaintiff Garçon and other players both in the games and to promote the
games.
7.

This Court has diversity jurisdiction over this action under 28 U.S.C.

§ 1332 because the amount in controversy for Mr. Garçon exceeds $75,000 and for the
class exceeds $5,000,000.
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8.

Plaintiff and one or more Class member(s) is a citizen of a state different

from the Defendant.
9.

The Court also has jurisdiction under 28 U.S.C. § 1331.

10.

This Court has personal jurisdiction over Defendant because Defendant

FanDuel conducts substantial business in the district, even operating a “FanDuel lounge”
at FedEx Field in Landover, Maryland.
11.

Venue is proper in this district under 28 U.S.C. § 1391 because Defendant

transacts substantial business in this district and performs acts here that form the basis for
the Plaintiff’s and Class members’ claims in this Complaint.
FACTS
I.

FanDuel’s Sales of Its Online Games Using NFL Players’ Rights Generates
Hundreds of Millions of Dollars in Revenue.
12.

The daily fantasy sports commercial market is a billion-dollar industry

and, in FanDuel’s case, is dependent on professional athletes’ names, likenesses, talent,
performance, and popularity.
13.

FanDuel has upended the daily fantasy sports world by creating its own

private fee to play online gaming product for daily fantasy sports contests.
14.

Defendant FanDuel runs online interactive games where a purchaser from

FanDuel pays FanDuel an entry fee and in exchange is given virtual FanDuel currency to
use during this online game to purchase individual players to build a virtual team of
professional athletes.
15.

FanDuel markets on their website that their online competition is thrilling:
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16.

In this case, the players’ rights of personality at issue being sold by

FanDuel are those of the NFL players, and the FanDuel customers use those purchases to
compete against other users in their online games based on their virtual team members’
real world performance.
17.

In effect, each participant becomes the owner and general manager of a

daily fantasy football franchise within the FanDuel game.
18.

FanDuel users set up and access FanDuel and their FanDuel account

through an Internet browser or through FanDuel’s mobile platforms.
19.

After a user has activated his account and paid to enter an NFL FanDuel

contest, he can fill out his roster by purchasing current NFL identified players by their
name, position, and FanDuel-assigned salary cap amount.
20.

In Defendant FanDuel’s NFL daily fantasy football games, the participant

is not committed to his team for an entire NFL season, like in other fantasy leagues.
21.

Rather, FanDuel users can purchase NFL players for their daily fantasy

teams under a designated salary cap for one week only. Defendant FanDuel assigns each
NFL player a dollar amount, which counts against that salary cap, based on that player’s
performance and popularity.
22.

In daily fantasy football, the most popular NFL players are marketed the

most by FanDuel and often drafted first. Their dependable play on the field makes them
4
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a dependable source of fantasy points, which are necessary to win any daily fantasy
football online game. Should a player underperform or get hurt, FanDuel’s customers
can adjust their rosters throughout the NFL season through trades with other game
players, waiver acquisitions, or free agency.
23.

Defendant FanDuel releases the final lineups cards in each game selected

by each customer after NFL games have started each Sunday, incorporating even the
pictures of the NFL players in those online lineup cards:
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24.

With Defendant FanDuel’s daily fantasy format, the FanDuel game

players can draft a different fantasy football team each week and choose a different game
format each week, with a variety of options created by FanDuel.
II.

FanDuel Exploits Current NFL Players’ Popularity To Drive Users to Their
Daily Fantasy Sports Gaming Products.
25.

Defendant FanDuel’s success in selling the game depends on driving users

to their web platform for daily fantasy football games and getting them to purchase and
play a new online fantasy football game each week.
26.

Capitalizing directly on NFL players’ popularity and performance,

Defendant FanDuel promotes and operates its daily fantasy sports contests using NFL
players’ names and likenesses.
27.

Defendant FanDuel attracts users to their contests through a

comprehensive advertising campaign designed to solicit the largest number of users, and
with them huge revenues for Defendant FanDuel in entry fees.
28.

Defendant FanDuel broadly advertises its daily fantasy sports website and

contests on television and online, including broadcast and cable networks, YouTube,
Fanduel.com, Fanduel.com/insider, Instagram, and Facebook.
29.

Defendant FanDuel frequently runs national television advertising

campaigns, using NFL players’ names to promote its daily fantasy sports contests.
30.

Those campaigns run commercials on virtually all of the major television

networks, including but not limited to, ESPN Networks, NBC Sports, CBS Sports, CNN,
Spike TV, Univision, NBC, and CBS.
31.

As part of those campaigns, FanDuel intentionally capitalizes in their

advertisements by repeatedly using the names of only the most well known NFL stars to
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promote the FanDuel game and drive traffic to their website to sell their online games.
Of course, there is no reason to use the names of the NFL stars in the advertisements
other than to promote sales of FanDuel’s online games.
32.

Beginning in September 2015, FanDuel began running a national

advertising campaign on the major television networks that included a twenty-eight
minute infomercial advertising FanDuel’s online games to consumers.
33.

That infomercial begins with the acknowledgement, “The following is a

paid advertisement for FanDuel.”
34.

As set forth in the picture below, that “paid advertisement” by FanDuel

consistently through that entire infomercial misappropriates Pierre Garçon’s and other
players’ names over and over again, with the sole purpose of selling FanDuel—but
without compensating Mr. Garçon or, upon information and belief, the other players:

35.

Indeed, throughout the game, Mr. Garçon and other players’ names are

used to promote all the advantages of FanDuel, including FanDuel’s marketing claim of
“MOST PAYOUTS”:
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36.

For large portions of the infomercial, the paid actor in the commercial

stands next to a television screen that has Pierre Garçon’s name scrolling atop the
television screen with eight other of the most famous NFL Stars, including Andrew Luck,
Aaron Rogers, Antonio Brown, Le’Veon Bell, Jamaal Charles, Greg Jennings, and
Marshawn Lynch.

37.

All told, Defendant wrongfully uses Pierre Garçon’s name alone over fifty-

three times in the infomercial that lasts only 28 minutes and thirty seconds.
38.

Upon information and belief, as of October 25, 2015, that infomercial

continued to be run on numerous national networks and was reported to be running on
CNBC on that date.
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39.

Likewise, upon information and belief, FanDuel has on thousands of

other occasions aired a television commercial—“Get off the Sidelines”—on the national
networks.
40.

For example, upon information and belief, FanDuel has run “Get off the

Sidelines” at least 3,125 times; upon information and belief, it specifically ran on CBS
Sports on October 29, 2015.
41.

As with the FanDuel infomercial, the “Get off the Sidelines” television

advertisement touts FanDuel’s website and game by misappropriating Plaintiff Garçon’s
name.
42.

As depicted below, fourteen seconds into that commercial, Defendant

FanDuel displayed Plaintiff Garçon’s name, position, and team abbreviation (WAS) as an
NFL player that potential FanDuel users could select for their FanDuel daily fantasy team
and the actor then selects Plaintiff Garçon’s name:

43.

Upon information and belief, likewise, on or about October 5, 2015,

FanDuel ran another national television advertising campaign for its website with a
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commercial known as “People Go Crazy,” in which it displayed Plaintiff Garçon’s name,
position, and team abbreviation (WAS) as an NFL player that potential FanDuel users
should select for their FanDuel daily fantasy team as follows:

44.

Upon information and belief, FanDuel has run the “People Go Crazy”

advertisement over 712 times and has several versions of this ad.
45.

Upon information and belief, therefore, FanDuel has reached millions of

households and attracted thousands of new customers and millions of dollars in purchases
of its game by misappropriating Pierre Garçon’s and other similarly situated NFL
players’ names in its marketing.
46.

Indeed, upon information and belief, during the first full week of October

2015 alone, Defendant FanDuel spent over $16 million in television advertising, airing its
commercials nationwide over 2,900 times.1

1

iSpot.tv, Top Ten Spenders in TV Advertising This Week, http://www.ispot.tv/free-reports/top-spenderstv-ads (last accessed Oct. 12, 2015).
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47.

Defendant FanDuel also publishes the same advertisements on the

Internet, including YouTube.
48.

All of this improper advertisement is intended to and does drive customers

to the host of Defendant FanDuel’s online games, its websites, Fanduel.com, and
Fanduel.com/insider, which then becomes the focal point of marketing to the customers.
49.

There, Defendant FanDuel continues to exploit NFL players’ names and

likenesses to promote its daily fantasy sports contests and to solicit users.
50.

Similarly, on its FanDuel website, Defendant FanDuel prominently posts

the Class members’ names and photographs and solicits potential users to purchase them
for their FanDuel daily fantasy game football roster. For example, for Le’Veon Bell,
Plaintiff, and others, FanDuel uses the following in its game:
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51.

To induce people to buy into the games, FanDuel also promotes the

success customers will have if they follow FanDuel’s recommendations, again using
players’ names and likenesses in the marketing, without permission. For example, once
at the website FanDuel continues to use Pierre Garçon’s and nine other players’ names
and likenesses in that marketing:
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III.

By Blatantly Misappropriating These Valuable Publicity Rights, FanDuel
Has Injured—And Continues to Injure—Plaintiff Garçon and the Class
Members.
52.

Professional athletes’ names and likenesses are valuable intangible

property.
53.

Indeed, Plaintiff’s and Class members’ continued popularity and

successful performance on the field are critical to their own commercial success and the
commercial success of the NFL.
54.

Plaintiff, and upon information the other NFL players, have not consented,

in writing or otherwise, to Defendant FanDuel’s use of their names or likenesses to
promote or to operate its daily fantasy sports product.
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55.

FanDuel’s regular use of Plaintiff’s name in its television and Internet

advertising is likely to create confusion among potential users as to Plaintiff’s
sponsorship or approval of FanDuel and its daily fantasy football gaming products.
56.

Nevertheless, Defendant FanDuel knowingly exploits Plaintiff Garçon’s

and these players’ valuable publicity rights for its own financial gain through its allinclusive advertising campaign and various daily fantasy sports products.
57.

And Defendant FanDuel has been extremely successful in doing so. Since

its inception, these wide-ranging promotional efforts have driven users to Defendant
FanDuel’s daily fantasy sports product in droves.
58.

For example, according to SuperLobby.com, Defendant FanDuel’s $5

million guaranteed NFL contest—Defendant FanDuel’s top NFL contest—received
almost 231,000 entries for Week 5 of the NFL season. Across all of its guaranteed prize
pool contests in Week 5 of the NFL season, Defendant FanDuel received almost 3.38
million entries. Defendant FanDuel collected $20.6 million in entry fees for its NFL
guaranteed prize pool contests and paid out nearly $17.1 million for Week 5 of the NFL
season.
59.

According to SuperLobby.com, Defendant FanDuel is likely to meet—if

not exceed—these huge numbers as the 2015 NFL season continues, especially
considering the huge amounts FanDuel spends on advertising.
60.

Indeed, Defendant FanDuel generated almost $57 million in revenue in

2014 alone and awarded over half a billion dollars in cash prizes. This year, Defendant
FanDuel should beat last year’s revenue, given its projection that it will hand out nearly
$2 billion in cash prizes.
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61.

Defendant FanDuel owes its success operating these daily fantasy football

contests to NFL players, like Plaintiff and Class members, whose names and likenesses
make FanDuel’s games possible. For without them and their on-the-field success, daily
fantasy football would not exist.
62.

As a result of Defendant FanDuel’s knowing misappropriation of their

publicity rights, Plaintiff and Class members have suffered damages.
CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS
63.

Plaintiff sues on his own behalf and on behalf of a class of persons under

Rule 23 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. Subject to modification after discovery
and case development, the putative Class is tentatively defined as:
All National Football League (NFL) players on an NFL team roster since
2013 whose names and/or likenesses Defendant FanDuel used to operate
or promote its fantasy sports products from January 1, 2013 through the
present.
64.

Excluded from the Class are Defendants, their employees, co-conspirators,

officers, directors, legal representatives, heirs, successors, and wholly or partly owned
subsidiaries or affiliated companies, class counsel and their employees, and the judicial
officers and associated court staff assigned to this case.
65.

Members of the proposed Class are so numerous that individual joinder of

all members is impracticable in this case. There are hundreds of Class members.
66.

Class members are identifiable by examining the rosters of the 32 NFL

teams and by reviewing Defendant’s records to determine which of those players
Defendant used in its television and online advertisements and in the operation of its
daily fantasy sports gaming products.

16

Case 8:15-cv-03324-PJM Document 1 Filed 10/30/15 Page 17 of 21

67.

Questions of law and fact common to the Class members predominate

over questions affecting only individual members, including:
a.

Whether Defendant uses current NFL players’ names and/or
likenesses in its television and online advertisements;

b.

Whether Defendant uses current NFL players’ names and/or
likenesses in its daily fantasy sports gaming products;

c.

Whether such use is unlawful;

d.

Whether Defendant’s conduct violates various rights protecting
publicity rights;

e.

Whether Defendant’s conduct violates 15 U.S.C. § 1125;

f.

Whether Plaintiff and Class members have been damaged by
Defendant’s conduct and the amount of such damage;

g.

Whether Defendant should disgorge its unlawful profits and the
amount of such profits;

68.

h.

Whether such use causes confusion; and

i.

Whether FanDuel intended to misappropriate players’ rights.

Plaintiff’s claims are typical of the Class claims, as they arise out of the

same course of conduct and the same legal theories. Plaintiff challenges Defendant’s
practices and conduct as to the Class as a whole.
69.

Plaintiff is an adequate representative of the Class because his interests do

not conflict with Class members’ interests, he will fairly and adequately protect Class
members’ interests, and he is represented by counsel skilled and experienced in class
actions.
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70.

A class action is the superior method for fair and efficient adjudication of

this controversy because no individual Class member can justify the commitment of the
large financial resources necessary to prosecute this lawsuit against Defendant. Separate
actions by individual members would risk inconsistent or varying judgments, which
would establish incompatible standards of conduct for Defendant and impair or impede
Class members’ ability to pursue their claims to resolution.
71.

Defendant has acted on grounds generally applicable to the Class, making

final injunctive relief and corresponding declaratory relief with respect to the Class as a
whole appropriate.
COUNT I – Deprivation of Publicity Rights
72.

Plaintiff incorporates the allegations set forth above in paragraphs 1

through 71.
73.

Plaintiff’s and Class members’ names and likenesses hold significant

commercial value.
74.

Defendant FanDuel has exploited Plaintiff’s and Class members’ names

and likenesses without their consent for the purpose of advertising and operating its daily
fantasy football gaming products.
75.

Defendant FanDuel has willfully and intentionally used Plaintiff’s and

Class members’ rights of publicity.
76.

As a result of Defendant FanDuel’s conduct, Plaintiff and Class members

have been injured.
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COUNT II – False Endorsement, Violation of § 43 of the Lanham Act,
15 U.S.C. § 1125
77.

Plaintiff incorporates the allegations set forth above in paragraphs 1

through 76.
78.

Plaintiff’s name and likeness hold significant commercial value.

79.

Defendant FanDuel has exploited Plaintiff’s name and likeness without his

consent to promote its daily fantasy football gaming product, to solicit users to its
website, and ultimately to collect entry fees.
80.

Given his popularity and performance on the field, Plaintiff’s name and

likeness are highly recognizable to potential consumers who are deciding whether to
establish a FanDuel account and to utilize one of its daily fantasy football products. For
that reason, FanDuel selects NFL players, like Plaintiff, to feature prominently in its
advertisements when describing its daily fantasy football products.
81.

Defendant FanDuel’s use of Plaintiff’s name and likeness is likely to

confuse potential FanDuel consumers about any connection or association between
Plaintiff and Defendant FanDuel or as to Plaintiff’s sponsorship or approval of Defendant
FanDuel and its daily fantasy football gaming products.
82.

As a result of Defendant FanDuel’s conduct, Plaintiff has been injured.
COUNT III – Unjust Enrichment

83.

Plaintiff incorporates the allegations set forth above in paragraphs 1

through 82.
84.

Defendant FanDuel has been unjustly enriched as a result of unlawfully

misappropriating Plaintiff’s and Class members’ rights of publicity, to their detriment.
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85.

Defendant should not be permitted to retain the benefits it has received

from its unlawful misappropriation.
86.

Plaintiff and Class members seek full restitution of Defendants’ unlawful

profits, which they acquired as a result of the unlawful conduct alleged in this Complaint.
PRAYER FOR RELIEF
WHEREFORE, Plaintiff respectfully requests relief from this Court as follows:
a.

An award of damages for Defendant’s violations of 15 U.S.C. § 1125;

b.

Certification of the action as a Class Action under Rule 23 of the Federal
Rules of Civil Procedure, appointment of Plaintiff as Class Representative,
and appointment of counsel of record as Class Counsel;

c.

An award of damages for Defendant’s violations of Plaintiff’s and the
Class members’ rights of publicity;

d.

An award of exemplary damages for Defendant’s knowing violations of
Class members’ rights of publicity;

e.

An award for disgorgement of all profits earned by Defendant from
promoting its daily fantasy sports contests using Plaintiff’s and Class
members’ names and/or likenesses;

f.

An injunction enjoining Defendant from the future use of Plaintiff’s and
Class members’ names and likenesses to promote its daily fantasy sports
contests;

g.

An award for Plaintiff’s costs and fees in bringing this action; and

h.

Any other relief as the Court may deem just and proper.
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JURY DEMAND
Plaintiff demands a jury trial on all issues triable by jury.

Respectfully submitted,
/s/ Thanos Basdekis
Brian A. Glasser
Thanos Basdekis (283712)
BAILEY & GLASSER LLP
1054 31st Street, Suite 230
Washington, DC 20007
Telephone: (202) 463-2101
Facsimile: (202) 463-2103
E-mail: bglasser@baileyglasser.com
tbasdekis@baileyglasser.com
Pro hac vice applications to be filed:
Joseph F. Murray
Brian K. Murphy
Geoffrey J. Moul
Murray Murphy Moul + Basil LLP
1114 Dublin Road
Columbus, OH 43215
Telephone: (614) 488-0400
Facsimile: (614) 488-0401
E-mail: murray@mmmb.com
murphy@mmmb.com
moul@mmmb.com
Counsel for Plaintiff
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INSTRUCTIONS FOR ATTORNEYS COMPLETING CIVIL COVER SHEET FORM JS 44
Authority For Civil Cover Sheet
The JS 44 civil cover sheet and the information contained herein neither replaces nor supplements the filings and service of pleading or other papers as
required by law, except as provided by local rules of court. This form, approved by the Judicial Conference of the United States in September 1974, is
required for the use of the Clerk of Court for the purpose of initiating the civil docket sheet. Consequently, a civil cover sheet is submitted to the Clerk of
Court for each civil complaint filed. The attorney filing a case should complete the form as follows:
I.(a)

(b)

(c)

Plaintiffs-Defendants. Enter names (last, first, middle initial) of plaintiff and defendant. If the plaintiff or defendant is a government agency, use
only the full name or standard abbreviations. If the plaintiff or defendant is an official within a government agency, identify first the agency and
then the official, giving both name and title.
County of Residence. For each civil case filed, except U.S. plaintiff cases, enter the name of the county where the first listed plaintiff resides at the
time of filing. In U.S. plaintiff cases, enter the name of the county in which the first listed defendant resides at the time of filing. (NOTE: In land
condemnation cases, the county of residence of the "defendant" is the location of the tract of land involved.)
Attorneys. Enter the firm name, address, telephone number, and attorney of record. If there are several attorneys, list them on an attachment, noting
in this section "(see attachment)".

II.

Jurisdiction. The basis of jurisdiction is set forth under Rule 8(a), F.R.Cv.P., which requires that jurisdictions be shown in pleadings. Place an "X"
in one of the boxes. If there is more than one basis of jurisdiction, precedence is given in the order shown below.
United States plaintiff. (1) Jurisdiction based on 28 U.S.C. 1345 and 1348. Suits by agencies and officers of the United States are included here.
United States defendant. (2) When the plaintiff is suing the United States, its officers or agencies, place an "X" in this box.
Federal question. (3) This refers to suits under 28 U.S.C. 1331, where jurisdiction arises under the Constitution of the United States, an amendment
to the Constitution, an act of Congress or a treaty of the United States. In cases where the U.S. is a party, the U.S. plaintiff or defendant code takes
precedence, and box 1 or 2 should be marked.
Diversity of citizenship. (4) This refers to suits under 28 U.S.C. 1332, where parties are citizens of different states. When Box 4 is checked, the
citizenship of the different parties must be checked. (See Section III below; NOTE: federal question actions take precedence over diversity
cases.)

III.

Residence (citizenship) of Principal Parties. This section of the JS 44 is to be completed if diversity of citizenship was indicated above. Mark this
section for each principal party.

IV.

Nature of Suit. Place an "X" in the appropriate box. If the nature of suit cannot be determined, be sure the cause of action, in Section VI below, is
sufficient to enable the deputy clerk or the statistical clerk(s) in the Administrative Office to determine the nature of suit. If the cause fits more than
one nature of suit, select the most definitive.

V.

Origin. Place an "X" in one of the six boxes.
Original Proceedings. (1) Cases which originate in the United States district courts.
Removed from State Court. (2) Proceedings initiated in state courts may be removed to the district courts under Title 28 U.S.C., Section 1441.
When the petition for removal is granted, check this box.
Remanded from Appellate Court. (3) Check this box for cases remanded to the district court for further action. Use the date of remand as the filing
date.
Reinstated or Reopened. (4) Check this box for cases reinstated or reopened in the district court. Use the reopening date as the filing date.
Transferred from Another District. (5) For cases transferred under Title 28 U.S.C. Section 1404(a). Do not use this for within district transfers or
multidistrict litigation transfers.
Multidistrict Litigation. (6) Check this box when a multidistrict case is transferred into the district under authority of Title 28 U.S.C. Section 1407.
When this box is checked, do not check (5) above.

VI.

Cause of Action. Report the civil statute directly related to the cause of action and give a brief description of the cause. Do not cite jurisdictional
statutes unless diversity. Example: U.S. Civil Statute: 47 USC 553 Brief Description: Unauthorized reception of cable service

VII.

Requested in Complaint. Class Action. Place an "X" in this box if you are filing a class action under Rule 23, F.R.Cv.P.
Demand. In this space enter the actual dollar amount being demanded or indicate other demand, such as a preliminary injunction.
Jury Demand. Check the appropriate box to indicate whether or not a jury is being demanded.

VIII. Related Cases. This section of the JS 44 is used to reference related pending cases, if any. If there are related pending cases, insert the docket
numbers and the corresponding judge names for such cases.
Date and Attorney Signature. Date and sign the civil cover sheet.
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
for the

District
of Maryland
__________
District
of __________
PIERRE GARÇON, individually and on behalf of all
those similarly situated

Plaintiff(s)

v.
FANDUEL INC.

Defendant(s)

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)

Civil Action No.

SUMMONS IN A CIVIL ACTION
To: (Defendant’s name and address) FANDUEL INC.
19 UNION SQUARE WEST, 9TH FL.
NEW YORK, NY 10003

A lawsuit has been filed against you.
Within 21 days after service of this summons on you (not counting the day you received it) — or 60 days if you
are the United States or a United States agency, or an officer or employee of the United States described in Fed. R. Civ.
P. 12 (a)(2) or (3) — you must serve on the plaintiff an answer to the attached complaint or a motion under Rule 12 of
the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. The answer or motion must be served on the plaintiff or plaintiff’s attorney,
whose name and address are: Thanos Basdekis
BAILEY & GLASSER LLP
1054 31st Street, Suite 230
Washington, DC 20007

If you fail to respond, judgment by default will be entered against you for the relief demanded in the complaint.
You also must file your answer or motion with the court.

CLERK OF COURT

Date:
Signature of Clerk or Deputy Clerk
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Civil Action No.
PROOF OF SERVICE
(This section should not be filed with the court unless required by Fed. R. Civ. P. 4 (l))
This summons for (name of individual and title, if any)
was received by me on (date)

.

’ I personally served the summons on the individual at (place)
on (date)

; or

’ I left the summons at the individual’s residence or usual place of abode with (name)
, a person of suitable age and discretion who resides there,
on (date)

, and mailed a copy to the individual’s last known address; or

’ I served the summons on (name of individual)

, who is

designated by law to accept service of process on behalf of (name of organization)
on (date)

; or

’ I returned the summons unexecuted because

; or

’ Other (specify):
.
My fees are $

for travel and $

for services, for a total of $

0.00

I declare under penalty of perjury that this information is true.

Date:
Server’s signature

Printed name and title

Server’s address

Additional information regarding attempted service, etc:

Print
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Reset

.

